
 

Scrutiny Committee 
 

 
 

Tuesday 30th September 2014 
 
10.00 am 
 
Main Committee Room 
Council Offices 
Brympton Way 
Yeovil 
BA20 2HT 
 

(disabled access is available at this meeting venue)               
 

 
Members listed on the following page are requested to attend the meeting. 
 
The public and press are welcome to attend. 
 
If you would like any further information on the items to be discussed, please ring the 
Agenda Co-ordinator, Becky Sanders, Democratic Services Officer 01935 
462596, website: www.southsomerset.gov.uk 
 

This Agenda was issued on Monday 22 September 2014. 
 
 

Ian Clarke, Assistant Director (Legal & Corporate Services) 

 
 

 
This information is also available on our website  
www.southsomerset.gov.uk

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southsomerset.gov.uk/


Scrutiny Committee Membership 

 
The following members are requested to attend the meeting: 
 
Chairman: Sue Steele 
Vice-chairmen: Dave Bulmer and Nigel Mermagen 
 
Pauline Clarke 
Nick Colbert 
Carol Goodall 
Tim Inglefield 
 

Pauline Lock 
Tony Lock 
Paul Maxwell 
Graham Middleton 
 

Sue Osborne 
David Recardo 
Martin Wale 
 

 

Information for the Public 

 

What is Scrutiny? 

 

The Local Government Act 2000 requires all councils in England and Wales to introduce 
new political structures which provide a clear role for the Council, the Executive and non-
executive councillors. 
 
One of the key roles for non-executive councillors is to undertake an overview and scrutiny 
role for the council. In this Council the overview and scrutiny role involves reviewing and 
developing, scrutinising organisations external to the council and holding the executive to 
account  
 
Scrutiny also has an important role to play in organisational performance management. 
 
The Scrutiny Committee is made up of 14 non-executive members and meets monthly to 
consider items where executive decisions need to be reviewed before or after their 
implementation, and to commission reviews of policy or other public interest. 
 

Members of the public are able to: 
 

 attend meetings of the Scrutiny Committee except where, for example, personal or 
confidential matters are being discussed; 

 

 speak at Scrutiny Committee meetings; and 
 

 see agenda reports. 
 
Meetings of the Scrutiny Committee are held monthly on the Tuesday prior to meetings of 
the District Executive at 10.00am in the Council Offices, Brympton Way, Yeovil. 
 
Agendas and minutes of these meetings are published on the Council’s website 
www.southsomerset.gov.uk. 
 
The Council’s Constitution is also on the website and available for inspection in council 
offices. 
 
Further information can be obtained by contacting the agenda co-ordinator named on the 
front page. 
 



 

 

 

South Somerset District Council – Council Plan 

 

Our focuses are: (all equal) 
 

 Jobs – We want a strong economy which has low unemployment and thriving 
businesses 

 Environment – We want an attractive environment to live in with increased recycling and 
lower energy use 

 Homes – We want decent housing for our residents that matches their income 

 Health and Communities – We want communities that are healthy, self-reliant and have 
individuals who are willing to help each other 

 

 
 
 

Ordnance Survey mapping/map data included within this publication is provided by South Somerset District 
Council under licence from the Ordnance Survey in order to fulfil its public function to undertake its statutory 
functions on behalf of the district.  Persons viewing this mapping should contact Ordnance Survey copyright for 
advice where they wish to licence Ordnance Survey mapping/map data for their own use. South Somerset 
District Council - LA100019471 - 2014. 
 
 

 



This page is intentionally blank 



 

 

Scrutiny Committee 
 
Tuesday 30 September 2014 
 
Agenda 
 

Preliminary Items 
 
 

1.   Minutes (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting held on 2 September 
2014. 

2.   Apologies for Absence  

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  
 
In accordance with the Council's current Code of Conduct (adopted July 2012), which 
includes all the provisions relating to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI), personal and 
prejudicial interests, Members are asked to declare any DPI and also any personal 
interests (and whether or not such personal interests are also "prejudicial") in relation to 
any matter on the Agenda for this meeting. A DPI is defined in The Relevant Authorities 
(Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 (SI 2012 No. 1464) and Appendix 3 
of the Council’s Code of Conduct.  A personal interest is defined in paragraph 2.8 of the 
Code and a prejudicial interest is defined in paragraph 2.9. In the interests of complete 
transparency, Members of the County Council, who are not also members of this 
committee, are encouraged to declare any interests they may have in any matters being 
discussed even though they may not be under any obligation to do so under any relevant 
code of conduct. 

4.   Public Question Time  

 

5.   Issues Arising from Previous Meetings  

 
This is an opportunity for Members to question the progress on issues arising from 
previous meetings.  However, this does not allow for the re-opening of a debate on any 
item not forming part of this agenda. 

6.   Chairman's Announcements  

 
 
Items for Discussion 
 

7.   Presentation about Health Scrutiny (Page 5) 

 

8.   Connecting Somerset and Devon Broadband (Pages 6 - 13) 

 

9.   Verbal Update on reports considered by District Executive on 4 September 
2014 (Page 14) 

 

10.   Reports to be considered by District Executive on 2 October 2014 (Page 15) 

 



11.   Verbal Update on Task and Finish Reviews (Page 16) 

 

12.   Update on Matters of Interest (Page 17) 

 

13.   Scrutiny Work Programme (Pages 18 - 19) 

 

14.   Date of Next Meeting (Page 20) 

 
 



 
 

 
 

Scrutiny 1 02.09.14 

 

South Somerset District Council 
 
Draft minutes of a meeting of the Scrutiny Committee held at the Main Committee 
Room, Council Offices, Brympton Way, Yeovil on Tuesday 2 September 2014. 
 

(10.05am  - 11.10am) 
Present: 
 
Members: Councillor Sue Steele (Chairman) 
 
Dave Bulmer 
Nigel Mermagen 
Pauline Clarke 
Nick Colbert 

Tony Fife 
Tim Inglefield 
Tony Lock 
David Recardo 
 

Also Present: 
 
Tim Carroll  

 
Officers  
 
Rina Singh Strategic Director (Place & Performance) 
Andrew Gillespie Performance Manager 
Colin McDonald Corporate Strategic Housing Manager 
Penny Blunn Performance Support Officer 
Nicola Doble Performance Support Officer 
Emily McGuinness Scrutiny Manager 
Becky Sanders Democratic Services Officer 
 

 

40. Minutes (Agenda Item 1) 
 
The minutes of the meeting of Scrutiny Committee held on Tuesday 5 August 2014 were 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

  

41. Apologies for absence (Agenda Item 2) 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Carol Goodall, Pauline Lock, Sue 
Osborne and Martin Wale. Councillor Tony Fife was susbstitute for Pauline Lock. 

  

42. Declarations of Interest (Agenda Item 3) 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 

  

43. Public question time (Agenda Item 4) 
 
There were no members of public at the meeting. 

  

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



 
 

 
 

Scrutiny 2 02.09.14 

 

44. Issues arising from previous meetings (Agenda Item 5) 
 
When the Council Tax Reduction Scheme had been discussed at the July meeting the 
Revenues and Benefits Manager had indicated he would source some information that 
had been requested at the meeting and circulate to Scrutiny members. It was noted that 
the information had not been circulated. 

  

45. Chairman's Announcements (Agenda Item 6) 
 
The Chairman noted she had recently attended a meeting of the Somerset Water 
Management Partnership. She commented it had been agreed that the Levels and 
Moors Task Force would be held in abatement until such time as it was needed again. 

  

46. Verbal update on reports considered by District Executive on 7 August 
2014 (Agenda Item 7) 
 
The Chairman noted that the Scrutiny comments had been considered and were 
included in the District Executive minutes that had been circulated. 

  

47. Reports to be considered by District Executive on 4 September 2014 
(Agenda Item 8) 
 
Members considered the reports outlined in the District Executive agenda for 4 
September 2014. It was agreed that the following comments would be taken forward to 
District executive for consideration: 

Quarterly Performance and Complaints Monitoring Report – 1st Quarter 2014/15 – 
item 6 

 Members noted the figures for planning appeals and have agreed to keep a 
watching brief on this indicator to ensure that, as stated in the report, this 
increase does not become a trend. 

 Scrutiny queried that if, as stated on page 3 of the report, an increase in sickness 
absence could not be attributed to stress caused by the current levels of change 
within the organisation, what are the other contributing factors and how are these 
being addressed? 

 Members sought clarification as to what evidence led to the comment made on 
page 3, that the reduction in FTE’s could be seen as a positive in terms of a 
reduction of costs / increase in efficiency? How can we be sure that the reduction 
of staff has not led to a decrease in service standards and/or led to an increase in 
temporary staff and/or consultants?  

 Scrutiny queried if SSDC had a Work Force Strategy that provided a more 
strategic approach to workforce levels? 

Affordable Housing development Programme – item 7 

 Members queried who had made the decision that the HCA would no longer 
financially support mortgage rescues, and questioned if the eligibility criteria for 

Page 2



 
 

 
 

Scrutiny 3 02.09.14 

 

mortgage rescues was clear? If SSDC were to agree to take on a Mortgage 
Rescue function, would there be scope for us to influence the eligibility criteria? 

 Scrutiny asked what the risks were for the future HCA funding if there was a 
change in government? 

Update on the creation of a Day Centre and related accommodation at 80 South 
Street, Yeovil – item 8 

         Scrutiny made no comments. 

Community Right to Bid – Nominations Received for Assets of Community Value – 
item 9 

         Scrutiny made no comments. 

District Executive Forward Plan – item 10 

         No comments 

CONFIDENTIAL - Exclusion of the Public  

In accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), 
the Committee resolved that the press and public be excluded from the following item in 
view of the likely disclosure of exempt information as described in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 
of Schedule 12A to the Act, i.e. “Information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information). 

Confidential – Lease of Floor at Churchfield, Wincanton – item 13 

         Members made comments in closed session. 

  

48. Verbal update on Task and Finish reviews (Agenda Item 9) 
 
The Chairman and Scrutiny Manager updated members on the progress of current Task 
and Finish reviews: 

Connecting Devon and Somerset Broadband 

The draft report was now with members of the group for comment and would be 
considered by Scrutiny Committee on 30 September and by the East Devon Scrutiny 
Committee in mid October. 

Civil Contingencies 

There will be a further meeting of the group on 9 September to look at how the Somerset 
Local Authorities Civil Contingencies Partnership is structured and how partnership 
actions are commissioned and delivered. The meeting will be attended by officers from 
both SSDC and SCC. 

Somerset Strategic Housing Framework 

The group would not meet again until a 12 week consultation period had finished, when 
they would consider the responses. To date, the response rate had been very low. 

Page 3



 
 

 
 

Scrutiny 4 02.09.14 

 

Members were informed that there would be a Budget Task and Finish Group 
established shortly. 

  

49. Update on matters of interest (Agenda Item 10) 
 
The Scrutiny Manager updated members that the Flooding Steering Group would meet 
in September to discuss the future role of the Steering Group and its relationship with the 
20 Year Flood Action Plan.  

  

50. Scrutiny Work Programme (Agenda Item 11) 
 
The Scrutiny Manager informed members that it had been arranged for someone from 
the Centre for Public Scrutiny (CfPS) to attend the next meeting to talk about Health 
Scrutiny. 

ACTION: Members to note the Scrutiny Work programme 
  

  

51. Date of next meeting (Agenda Item 12) 
 
Members noted that the next meeting of the Scrutiny Committee would be held on 
Tuesday 30 September 2014 at 10.00am in the Main Committee Room, Brympton Way, 
Yeovil. 

  
 
 
 
 

 …………………………………….. 

Chairman 

Page 4



Presentation About Health Scrutiny 

Ann Reeder, Regional Adviser on Health Scrutiny for the Centre for Public Scrutiny has been 
invited to attend this meeting in response to a request from members. 

Ann will give a short presentation on the potential for Health Scrutiny in a two tier local 
authority area and there will then be an opportunity for members to discuss an SSDC 
approach to effective Health Scrutiny. 

 

 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



Connecting Somerset and Devon Broadband 

Lead Officer: Emily McGuinness, Scrutiny Manager 
Contact Details: emily.mcguinness@southsomerset.gov.uk or (01935) 462566 
 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 

The report attached at Appendix A outlines the review process undertaken by the Broadband 
Task and Finish Group and their subsequent recommendations. 
 

Action Required 
 

Scrutiny Committee is asked to comment on the report and endorse the following 
recommendations (as contained in the report on page 13) to the Executive: 
 
Recommendations 
 
1. That clarification is sought, and reported to members, at the earliest opportunity as to 

whether the SSDC/EDDC element of the potential £22.75 million SEP funding can be 
redirected to an alternative provider outside of the Connecting Devon and Somerset 
Programme. 

 
2. That clarification is sought, and reported to members on the original objectives of the 

BDUK project…was it to provide improved access for rural residents to Superfast 
Broadband, in recognition of the fact that such access is now seen as essential in 
modern domestic and business life, or was it also to support cheaper provision to 
SME’s in more urban areas? Members would also like to have the position on state 
aid to business clarified in relation to this point. 

 
3. That whatever decisions are taken corporately to address providing Superfast 

Broadband to ‘the final 10%’, there is a commitment to openness, transparency and 
accountability from all those involved and there will be no further use of Non-
disclosure Agreements or similar. 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 6

Agenda Item 8



Appendix A 
 
Broadband Scrutiny Review 
 
This report sets out the findings of the Task and Finish Group jointly established by EDDC 
and SSDC to look into the issue of providing rural access to Superfast Broadband via the 
Connecting Devon and Somerset Project. 
 
The report will briefly outline the background to this topic and the review methodology used, 
before drawing a series of conclusions. 
 
Review Background: 
 
Connecting Devon and Somerset Joint Task and Finish Group 
 

The issue of rural broadband now has a high national profile, thanks mainly to a report 

recently published by the Public Accounts Select Committee 

http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201314/cmselect/cmpubacc/474/47402.htm  

This report mainly focuses on the impact of BT having been awarded all the Rural 

Broadband contracts and the inherent lack of competition and transparency in the process.  

 

The guiding principles of the Rural Broadband project are to provide superfast broadband to 

90% of the country and 100% by 2020, and these objectives should be welcomed and 

celebrated. However well- intentioned the project may be, there are concerns with how 

Connecting Devon and Somerset (CDS) are implementing it. The CDS project involves over 

£90 million of tax -payers money and as such members felt that the issue warranted 

thorough and detailed Scrutiny. 

 

Nationally, concerns have been raised about the openness and transparency of Broadband 

UK (BDUK) and the various regional models and this issue should form the primary focus of 

this review. 

 

Background 

 

The BDUK aims to provide 90% of UK households with superfast broadband by 2016 – it is 

important to note that this 90% is based on population not geographical location. There are 

concerns that this means in reality, the project is essentially becoming an urban broadband 

connection project as opposed to the intended outcome of improved rural connections. 

 

A particular issue for EDDC and SSDC was the use of Non-Disclosure Agreements (NDA) 

by the Connecting Devon and Somerset Project Team. The CDS team asked all Devon and 

Somerset local authorities to sign a NDA – signing such an agreement would essentially 

mean that EDDC and SSDC officers and members could attend meetings and briefings with 

BT as the CDS service provider, but would be prevented from sharing any information with 

other members, officers or the public. A decision was taken by EDDC and SSDC not to sign 

the agreement as doing so did not sit comfortably with our established principles of 

openness and transparency. It was felt that signing such a document would undermine the 

democratic accountability of the both us as local authorities and the wider CDS project. This 

decision not to sign the NDA, has nonetheless disadvantaged both authorities as the project 

has progressed. 

 

Page 7

http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201314/cmselect/cmpubacc/474/47402.htm


In the initial stages of the project, the Economic Development officers at SSDC put a 

considerable amount of effort into supporting the CDS project, they actively encouraged all 

sectors of the community to register their demand for superfast broadband and provided 

detailed mapping data to the CDS project team. This complex work was undertaken in the 

belief that the district council would remain an active partner in the CDS project, promoting 

the needs of EDDC and SSDC communities and businesses, in fact, we were held as a best 

practice example of how to effectively engage with the rural broadband programme.  At no 

stage was it stated that future involvement in the project would be dependent on signing the 

NDA. The decision not to sign the NDA effectively ended meaningful two way dialogue 

between our authorities and the CDS project team. As local authorities, EDDC and SSDC 

positively embraced the principles of providing superfast broadband to our rural communities 

and publically supported the project – we are now not in a position to either further the needs 

of our residents or respond to queries. 

 

The main concern for our communities is identifying what is known as the ‘final 10%’ – those 

households/ properties that will not be covered by the CDS project. This lack of information 

is having a significant impact. In SSDC there have been several instances of businesses 

contacting our Economic Development teams to ask if and when their broadband 

connectivity will be improved as the current poor Broadband provision was having a negative 

impact on their businesses. Knowledge of when they would be upgraded, or if indeed they 

would fall into the ‘final 10%’ would influence their future business decisions. 

 

CDS have argued that they don’t want to publish information in a piecemeal fashion, and 

want to wait until they have completed all survey work before publishing a detailed coverage 

map. To some extent, this position has been challenged by Maria Miller MP, the Secretary of 

State for Culture and Media. She wrote to all local authority Chief Executives on 19th July 

asking for coverage information to be published stating that, “… this information will help 

other broadband projects to fill in gaps in coverage…”. 

 

CDS initially produced a more detailed coverage map (below) 

 

 

Page 8



 
 

 

However, this map is not detailed enough to provide communities and business with relevant 

information. By contrast, the Connecting Dorset project produced an interactive map, 

allowing residents to find out coverage proposals down to individual post codes. 

 

Finding out which areas fall into the ‘final 10%’ was considered crucial by members of the 

Task and Finish Group. There have been three rounds of DEFRA funding available to 

support communities within the ‘final 10%’ to source alternative solutions such as satellite 

broadband or 4G technology.  In order to access this funding, communities were asked to 

submit expressions of interest based on a ‘strong indication’ that their area would fall into the 

‘final 10%’. The final round of funding closed on 17th June and obviously, Devon and 

Somerset communities were disadvantaged by the refusal of CDS to state which 

communities they anticipated would fall into the’ final 10%’. Other BDUK projects have 

successfully caveated along the lines of….this information may be subject to change based 

on the more detailed findings of our survey work and should therefore be treated as 

indicative until final confirmation is published…”. 

 

By being outside of the process by virtue of not signing the NDA, EEDC and SSDC were 

effectively outside of the Connecting Devon and Somerset Process and could not influence 

any part of the roll out programme, even though the CDS team were using the significant 

amount of data we supplied to them in the early stages. Despite us supplying this data, we 

were now not in a position to help interpret it, thus not enabling us to make the best case for 

our residents. 

 

Page 9



The whole premise for this project was to provide fibre optic broadband to rural communities 
where it would not otherwise have been commercially viable to do so. The project is heavily 
publically subsidised and there is little evidence publically available, that this money is not 
being used to fund work that BT would have done anyway, providing superfast broadband to 
the most populated rural communities. 
 
Scrutiny objectives 
 
As with all Scrutiny reviews the work of this Task and Finish Group needed maintain a strong 
focus on some key points. Nationally there are high level discussions on the nature of the 
procurement process used by BDUK and whilst it was agreed that the Task and Finish 
Group should keep a watching brief on this issue, members agreed that this review should 
focus on the following specific questions: 
 
- The validity of the Non-Disclosure Agreement – bearing in mind the recent call for 

openness and transparency from the Secretary of State responsible for this project. I 
have written to her office asking for her view on the use of NDA’s and her 
comments will be reported to the Task and Finish Group. 

- How do we ensure that SSDC and EDDC are positively engaged in the roll out process 
in the future, with no restricted access to information beyond usual arrangements. 

- How can we identify the final 10% as a matter of urgency and what can EDDC and 
SSDC do to actively support those communities which fall into this category? 

 
The priority for this Task and Finish had to be finding out how to gain access to relevant and 
timely information and identifying the final 10% as a matter of urgency – this is what will be 
of the greatest benefit to our communities. 
 
If appropriate, the Task and Finish Group can then go on to look at lessons that could/should 
be learnt from the CDS project experience. 
 
Review methodology / process 
 
A series of meetings were held to progress this review (the minutes of which are attached as 
appendices to this report). 
In addition to the formal meetings a considerable amount of research was conducted which 
contributed to the following conclusions: 
 
Conclusions 
 
It may appear that after considering this issue for some considerable time, this Task and 
Finish report does not contain many substantial recommendations, but this would be to 
underestimate the dynamic nature of the Connecting Devon and Somerset project. 
 
The frustrations and difficulties faced by members on this Task and Finish Group 
characterise those faced by communities seeking to influence the delivery of the 
programme. 
 
This Task and Finish Group was established with the aim of seeking to ensure that the 
delivery of the CDS project met the needs and expectations of communities in both South 
Somerset and East Devon. From the outset, we were aware of the constraints represented 
by the Non-disclosure Agreement, but members of the T&F adopted an approach of looking 
for pragmatic ways forward rather than looking to revisit the issue of the appropriateness of 
such an agreement in connection with a public funded project. From the outset, those 
conducting this review were keen to adopt a positive approach, looking to secure the best 
possible outcome for their residents. 

Page 10



Members have involved the community at all stages of this review and it quickly became 
apparent that there was some genuine (and well informed) concern amongst certain 
communities. 
 
Whilst members of the T&F may have sought to set aside the issue of the NDA in the 
interest of securing the best possible outcome for residents, over the course of their 
meetings with the public, it became clear that the issue of openness and transparency or 
(the perceived lack thereof) within the CDS project was an overriding concern amongst 
communities.  Concluding this matter, members adopted a ‘ we are where we are’ attitude to 
the issue of the EDDC/SSDC decision not to sign the NDA. Members agree with the stance 
taken over the NDA compromising democratic accountability and are disappointed to note 
that despite assurances that our not signing the NDA would in no way disadvantage our 
residents, the subsequent exclusion of EDDC and SSDC from discussions led to precisely 
that.  
 
This was all the more disappointing given the fact that officers at both authorities gave a 
considerable amount of time and effort in the early stages of the project to determine local 
demand and to promote the project and at no point did CDS mention that continued 
involvement in the delivery phase of the project would be dependent on the signing of an 
unduly restrictive NDA. Pragmatically, both authorities would have been better placed to 
influence the delivery of the CDS if they had signed the agreement, and members of this 
review feel that future stages of this project and indeed any similar projects in the future 
should allow such a situation to arise again – local authorities deal with highly confidential 
and commercially sensitive information on a regular basis and have mechanisms in place to 
ensure this – NDA’s have no place in a democratic process. 
 
The issue was raised with representatives from the CDS Project team (as referenced in the 
minutes from meeting) but the position remained intractable. 
 
Other work going on at the same time – various FOI requests meant that the CDS project 
team could defend a position of not releasing any of the information we requested pending 
the outcome of the Information Commissioner’s assessment. There were also several other 
discussions taking place between other members of the Council and CDS which made co-
ordination of effort and avoiding duplication increasingly difficult. 
 
The primary outcome of this Task and Finish Exercise should be a recognition of where the 
project to date has been less than successful (effective communication both between CDS 
and partners organisations and communities) and the undue influence given to a private 
sector business delivering a publically funded project. The recognition of these shortcomings 
must be translated into better partnering arrangements and agreements for future stages of 
superfast broadband delivery projects across Devon and Somerset. 
 
The next phase is already underway with the announcement on 25th February 2014 that the 
government was making an £250 million available to bring UK Superfast Broadband 
coverage up to 95% by the end of 2017. Members of the Task and Finish Group strongly 
recommend that those conducting any future discussions must be mindful of the need to 
ensure openness and transparency every step of the way. The next phase asks each local 
authority to contribute significant sums of money to secure central government match 
funding to deliver Superfast Broadband to the remaining 10%. Discussions to date bear 
worrying similarities to earlier stages of the project in that there is a lack of clarity/information 
forthcoming as to exact locations and delivery methods. Members of this Task and Finish 
Group strongly recommend that no decisions are taken by either authority about further 
involvement or potential financial contributions until there are robust agreements in place to 
ensure full democratic accountability and guaranteed local authority influence as to how the 
next phase of the project is delivered. 

Page 11



 
The Task and Finish Group also discussed the issue of Superfast Broadband and the local 
economy. Following their discussions members recommend that clarity is sort (and 
consequently communicated) as to the relationship between delivery Superfast Broadband 
to residential properties and delivering it to business properties.  
 
The initial project aims and objectives from Broadband UK looked to address the inequality 
of access between rural and urban communities in an increasingly digital age. Whilst the 
need to provide good communication links for businesses is vital to rural economies, the 
BDUK project was always more about enabling community access and thus making a 
substantial contribution to addressing rural deprivation. 
 
The next phase of the project Superfast Extension Programme (SEP) recognises that there 
remain some properties ( in the final 10%) that present additional technical difficulties due to 
geographical location and that alternative technological solutions are required. Such 
alternative technologies exist and the SEP project looks to bring this new learning to the 
CDS project area. 
 
There are legitimate concerns that urban areas have Superfast Broadband  access issues 
that are impacting on SME’s but it is the understanding of this T&F that the CDS project is 
designed to deliver vital communications to rural communities and the other options should 
be explored to support more urban SME’s. Members ask for clarification on the use of public 
funds as represented by the SEP and CDS projects to provide a subsidised service for 
private enterprise. In urban areas, the infrastructure for SFB is there, but the market is 
structured in such a way that SME’s can find the costs prohibitive. Members also seek 
clarification at the earliest opportunity as to whether the SSDC and/or EDDC elements of the 
£22.75 million can, under the terms of the SEP Government funding be redirected to an 
alternative provider outside of the Connecting Devon and Somerset programme. 
 
The BDUK Project was, as far as members have been able to determine, intended to 
provide the actual infrastructure to rural areas rather than influence service provision in more 
urban areas. Members ask that this position is definitively clarified before progressing with 
future phases of the CDS Project.  
 
One of the key objectives of this review was to encourage the CDS team to make the same 
information available to communities as their counterparts elsewhere in the Country.  At the 
conclusion of the review, it is now possible for residents to obtain information down to 7 digit 
postcode level, and whilst this success cannot be solely attributed to this review, it should be 
noted nonetheless. 
Whilst this review may have been characterised by frustration and disappointment that those 
charged with delivering a high value and high profile publically funded project have adopted 
a very narrow view of openness, accountability and transparency, the success of the project 
should not be diminished – more rural communities can now access what is widely 
concerned to a necessary part of modern living and thus, our rural communities are more 
sustainable than before. Members of this Task and Finish Group hope that by addressing 
some of the points raised in this report, the project will go on to deliver much needed 
outcomes, in a more publically acceptable manner.  
Members request that all current and future work looking into all aspects of Superfast 
Broadband across both local authority areas are reported for consideration by Scrutiny 
members in both EDDC and SSDC as appropriate. Over the course of this review, members 
have developed an in-depth understanding of the complexities involved. 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



Recommendations 
 
1. That clarification is sought, and reported to members, at the earliest opportunity 

as to whether the SSDC/EDDC element of the potential £22.75 million SEP funding 
can be redirected to an alternative provider outside of the Connecting Devon and 
Somerset Programme. 
 

2. That clarification is sought, and reported to members on the original objectives of 
the BDUK project…was it to provide improved access for rural residents to 
Superfast Broadband, in recognition of the fact that such access is now seen as 
essential in modern domestic and business life, or was it also to support cheaper 
provision to SME’s in more urban areas? Members would also like to have the 
position on state aid to business clarified in relation to this point. 
 

3. That whatever decisions are taken corporately to address providing Superfast 
Broadband to ‘the final 10%’, there is a commitment to openness, transparency 
and accountability from all those involved and there will be no further use of Non-
disclosure Agreements or similar. 
 

 

Page 13



Verbal Update on Reports Considered by District Executive on  

4 September 2014 

 
 
The Chairman will update members on the issues raised by Scrutiny members at the District 
Executive meeting held on 4 September 2014. 
 
The draft minutes from the District Executive meeting held on 4 September 2014 have been 
circulated with the District Executive agenda. 
 
 
 

 

Page 14

Agenda Item 9



Reports to be Considered by District Executive on 2 October 

2014 

 
Lead Officer: Emily McGuinness, Scrutiny Manager 
Contact Details: emily.mcguinness@southsomerset.gov.uk or (01935) 462566  
 
 
Scrutiny Committee members will receive a copy of the District Executive agenda containing 
the reports to be considered at the meeting on 2 October 2014. 
 
Members are asked to read the reports and bring any concerns/issues from the reports to be 
discussed at the Scrutiny Committee meeting on 30 September 2014. 
 
The Chairman will take forward any views raised by Scrutiny members to the District 
Executive meeting on 2 October 2014.  
 
 
 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 10



Verbal Update on Task and Finish Reviews  

 
 
The Task and Finish Review Chairs or Scrutiny Manager will give a brief verbal update on 
progress made. 
 
 
Current Task & Finish Reviews 
 

 Strategic Housing Framework 

 Civil Contingencies 
 
 
 
 

Page 16

Agenda Item 11



Update on Matters of Interest  

 
Lead Officers: Emily McGuinness, Scrutiny Manager 
Contact Details: emily.mcguinness@southsomerset.gov.uk or (01935) 462566  
 
Action Required 
 
That members of the Scrutiny Committee note the verbal updates as presented by the 
Scrutiny Manager. 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
This report is submitted for information to update members of the committee on any recent 
information regarding matters of interest to the Scrutiny Committee, and for the Scrutiny 
Manager to verbally update members on any ongoing matters including: 
 

 Flooding Steering Group 

 Setting up a Budget Task and Finish Group 
 
 
 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 12



Scrutiny Work Programme 

 

Meeting 
Date 

Agenda Item Issue for 
Main 
Scrutiny 
Cttee 

Budget Background/Description Lead Officer/ Lead 
Member 

4 Nov ‘14 Task and Finish Report – 
Civil Contingencies 

  A report outlining recommendations to be put to 
District Executive about future arrangements for 
the Somerset Civil Contingencies Partnership. 

Emily McGuinness, 
Scrutiny Manager 

4 Nov ‘14 High Street Innovation 
Funding 

  At the Scrutiny Committee meeting on 2 July 2013 
members received a report from the Yeovil Vision 
Board and the Market Towns Investment Group 
regarding what has been done with their share of 
the DCLG High Street Innovation Funding. The 
committee requested an update report after 12 
months. 

Kim Close & Andrew 
Gillespie, Area 
Development 
Managers. 
 
Tony Fife, Portfolio 
Holder for Yeovil Vision 
& Angie Singleton, 
Portfolio Holder for 
Market Towns. 

2 Dec ‘14 Planning Appeals   Following comments made in the Q1 Performance 
report, members have invited Dave Norris, 
Development Manager to attend their December 
meeting to discuss recent appeal decisions and 
outline what has been learnt from them. 

David Norris, 
Development Manager 

6 Jan ‘15 Police and Crime Panel 
(PCP) 

  Scrutiny Committee has agreed updates on the 
PCP will be provided twice a year. Cllr Tony Lock 
(SSDC representative on the Police and Crime 
Panel) will provide an update report. 

Cllr Tony Lock 

TBC Localism – relationship 
between tiers of local 
government (County / 
District / Town and Parish) 
to ensure effective working 

  Initial presentation to full Scrutiny Committee on 
the relevant legislative changes and how SSDC 
are planning to implement them. 

Emily McGuinness, 
Scrutiny Manager 

The Somerset Waste Board and Somerset Waste Partnership Forward Plan of key decisions can be viewed at: 
http://www.somerset.gov.uk/policies-and-plans/plans/cabinet-forward-plan/ 

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 13

http://www.somerset.gov.uk/policies-and-plans/plans/cabinet-forward-plan/


Task & Finish Reviews 
 

Date Commenced Title Members 

June 2014 Civil Contingencies Sue Steele, Martin wale, Carol Goodall, Sue Osborne 

TBC Choice Based Letting / Homefinder Somerset Follow Up TBC 

TBC 
District specific document following adoption of the 
Somerset Strategic Housing Framework (Countywide 
Strategy) 

Members involved in the original Task and Finish Group 
for the Somerset Strategic Housing Framework 
(Countywide Strategy) were: Sue Steele, Carol Goodall, 
Derek Yeomans, Graham Middleton. 

Ad-hoc monitoring Council Tax Benefit Reduction 
Carol Goodall, Sue Steele, Dave Bulmer,  
Sue Osborne Jenny Kenton, David Norris,  
Colin Winder 

On-going 
monitoring 

Somerset Countywide Flooding Summit/ Flooding Steering 
Group 

Dave Bulmer and Sue Steele 

 

P
age 19



Date of Next Meeting 

 
Members are requested to note that the next meeting of the Scrutiny Committee will be held 
on Tuesday 4 November 2014 at 10.00am in the Main Committee Room, Brympton Way, 
Yeovil. 
 
 
 
 

Page 20

Agenda Item 14


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	7 Presentation about Health Scrutiny
	8 Connecting Somerset and Devon Broadband
	Broadband Scrutiny Review Report

	9 Verbal Update on reports considered by District Executive on 4 September 2014
	10 Reports to be considered by District Executive on 2 October 2014
	11 Verbal Update on Task and Finish Reviews
	12 Update on Matters of Interest
	13 Scrutiny Work Programme
	14 Date of Next Meeting

